FEDERAL CONTRACT TOWER PROGRAM

QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES FROM THE

PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE DATED AUGUST 10, 1999


SECTION B – SUPPLIES OR SERVICES AND PRICE/COSTS

QUESTION #1 – Section B indicates the name and location of the towers.  Wage determination schedules are normally provided by geographic area.  Will Section B schedules be amended to provide the county or other jurisdiction to enable the Offerors to identify the appropriate Wage Determination Schedule for each location?

RESPONSE #1 – No, Section B will not be modified.  The counties will be listed on the wage determination spreadsheet that is provided under this announcement.  Copies of the Department of Labor Wage Rate Determinations will be provided upon request.

SECTION C – DESCRIPTION/SPECIFICATION/WORK STATEMENT

Clause C.2 -- DEFINITIONS

At certain facilities, employees may not work enough hours to be considered Full Time Equivalents (FTEs), in accordance with the provided definition (2,080 hours per year).  Therefore, it is conceivable to have an FTE calculation that is less than the actual number of employees dedicated to the facility.


Example #1 – A facility operates 16 hours per day, 7 days per week and operates with seven employees.  Provided the schedule calls for 8 hours shifts with double coverage and the manager working a 40-hour overlap, the annual labor hours would total approximately 13,760.  Provided all employees are new (for vacation consideration), we add to that total 560 hours for vacation.  Total hours for FTE consideration now equal 14,320.  Utilizing a divisor of 2,080, our FTE equivalents equal 6.88.  This calculation is then subject to change, based upon vacation entitlement, as referenced in the applicable DOL Wage Determination.


Example #2 – A facility operates 16 hours per day, 7 days per week and operates with five employees.  In this scenario, two 8-hour shifts accommodate the facility’s daily operating hours and there are two 40-hour overlap shifts per week.  The annual labor totals approximately 10,000 hours.  At this location, one employee is entitled to 160 hours and all remaining employees are entitled to 120 hours of vacation, in accordance with the applicable DOL Wage Determination.  As defined by the solicitation, than annual hours for FTE consideration equals 10,640.  Utilizing a divisor of 2,080, the facility has 5.12 FTEs.

Both of these scenarios are subject to change depending on whether or not employees work all hours and cash out vacation, work all hours less vacation taken, vacation entitlement based upon seniority, utilizing a divisor of 2,088 during a leap year and several other considerations.

QUESTION #1 - Is it the FAA’s intent to only show FTEs according to the definition referenced in the solicitation or is the intent to have bidders indicate how many employees are assigned to the facility full-time, even if they work less than 2,080 hours per year?

RESPONSE #1 – Yes to both questions.  The FAA wants the number of FTEs and the number of employees.

QUESTION #2 – The FAA has defined FTE as all compensable hours, i.e. 2,080 hours/year including annual leave, sick leave and other approved leave (2,088 hours/year for leap year).  Does this mean that all full-time contract controllers will work 2,080 hours minus leave?  

RESPONSE #2 – No.

QUESTION #3 – Is the Government requiring standard 40-hour workweeks for all full-time contract controllers?

RESPONSE #3 – No.

Clause C.4 -- CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES

QUESTION #1 – A number of facilities are high activity and have a complex operation, including BRITE radar duties, tower en route control functions, IFR separation responsibilities, LAWRS certification requirements and very high peak hour traffic.  Considerable skills have to be demonstrated in these facilities for certification.  Has the FAA given consideration to extending the 30 day transition period to 45-60 days to ensure that proper training is accomplished for all personnel at select high activity facilities?  It is imperative that a more reasonable time element be allocated to the higher activity facilities to ensure a proper transition. 

RESPONSE #1 – The FAA will continue to allocate 30-days for Phase-In.  However, on a case-by-case basis, with adequate justification, the FAA will evaluate the need to extend the transition period.

QUESTION #2 – Paragraph C.4.1.5 indicates that certain administrative activities are required.  The administrative and technical requirements have increased tremendously in the FCT program.  Has FAA considered requiring a specific number of hours for administrative functions that would ensure that FAA requirements can be accomplished?

RESPONSE #2 – To satisfy the administrative requirements, the Facility Manager shall not be scheduled to work ATC positions more than 50 percent of his/her time.

QUESTION #3 – Paragraph C.4.4 states that “Non-ATC workload” shall not in anyway influence the dollar value of the subject contract”, while paragraph C.4.1.4 states that Non-ATC duties such as “weather observations, changing recorder tapes or verifying runway lighting operability” shall be considered an integral part to the required ATC services”.  Attachment 2, Questions and Answers, gives a very broad definition of any “related services” as being ATC duties.  The two paragraphs and the Q&A response appear to be in conflict with each other.

RESPONSE #3 – The FAA does not see a conflict.  However, paragraph C.4.4 shall be revised to include a definition of non-ATC duties and who shall perform them.

QUESTION #4 – Does paragraph C.4.15 refer to Section C, Appendix 3?

RESPONSE #4 – Yes.

QUESTION #5 – Under paragraph C.4.16.1, is the tower cab considered “secure, exclusive use space”?

RESPONSE #5 – No.

QUESTION #6 – Under paragraph C.4.16.1, is the Contractor responsible for janitorial service in airport sponsor provided facilities for “secure, exclusive use space”?

RESPONSE #6 – Yes.

Clause C.6 -- EQUIPMENT

QUESTION #1 – Who will ensure that all appropriate operational equipment, required for the provision of ATC and weather reporting services, is provided at airport sponsor owned sites, not leased to the FAA?

RESPONSE #1 – The FAA will ensure that the airport sponsor will provide the required equipment.

APPENDIX 1 and 2

QUESTION #1 – There are two different FAA Security Orders listed – Appendix 1 has FAAO 1600.69 and Appendix 2 has FAAO 1600.6.  Which is correct?

RESPONSE #1 – The SIR will be amended to indicate that the correct FAA Security Order is 1600.69.  

QUESTION #2 – FAA document control personnel have told us that we cannot obtain FAA Order 1600.69 without written authorization from the FAA.  Who will provide that authorization?

REPSONSE #2 – The SIR will be amended to indicate that the Security Plan must be developed after contract award.  The Security Order 1600.69 will be distributed to the successful Contractor(s) after award.

APPENDIX 3

QUESTION #1 - A significant number of FCT locations identify hours of FCT weather reporting services that are periods either before the tower opens or after it closes.

For example:
FCT Location 0129, Salisbury-Ocean City Wicomico, Salisbury, MD



Tower Hours


0600-1800



FCT Weather Reporting
0000-2400

Is the Offeror expected to provide weather reporting services 24 hours per day in addition to those when the control tower is open? 

RESPONSE #1 – No.  An amendment to the SIR shall change the hours to reflect that reporting services are not required outside the tower operating hours.

APPENDIX 4

QUESTION #1 – Report “total number of hours paid” – is the FAA requesting the total numbers an employee was paid that are being directly billed to the Government under the contract?

RESPONSE #1 – Yes.

QUESTION #2 – “FAA reserves the right to change the report” – if the FAA disagrees with something in the report.  Shouldn’t the Contractor be requested to change/correct the report or that the FAA add a clarification?

RESPONSE #2 – The FAA will not change data submitted by the Contractor.  The intent was that the FAA may change the format of the report.

SECTION H - SPECIAL CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS

Clause H.10 -- SECURITY REQUIREMENT

QUESTION # 1 - Are current FAA Controllers who are retiring/leaving Government employment and incumbent contract employees exempt from this requirement?

RESPONSE #1 – Yes, provided that there is no more than one year break in service.

Clause H.14 -- LICENSES AND PERMITS

This paragraph states that the contractor is responsible for obtaining and paying for all licenses, permits, taxes, etc., at all government levels.  

QUESTION #1 - Will the FAA provide the particular town, county, or tax jurisdiction for each facility so that Offeror can identify all taxing jurisdictions?

RESPONSE #1 - Upon issuance of the Wage Determinations, the Government will include a list, which identifies the town, state and county for each facility.  It is the responsibility of the bidders to ensure the accuracy of the information utilized in preparing their proposals.

QUESTION #2 - If the laws of the jurisdictions change during contract performance so as to impose new taxes not previously known, will the FAA renegotiate the prices for those facilities to include the new taxes or permits?

RESPONSE #2 - No.  This is a Firm Fixed Price contract.  The Offeror is responsible for assuming the risks inherent in conducting business with the Government.

Clause H.23 -- COST SHARING UNDER PART II OF SECTION B

QUESTION #1  - This paragraph states that "Part II of Section B is set aside for those CLINS under a Cost Share Program under the FCT Program."  If a facility is listed under Part II, does this have any impact on the cost of site operation, i.e., additional and/or unique reporting requirements, etc?

 RESPONSE #1  - There is no impact on the cost of a facility under the Cost Share Program.  Office of payment is the only impact.
Clause H.30 -- SERVICE CONTRACT ACT MINIMUM WAGE DETERMINATION

QUESTION #1 – It is our understanding that you will issue Wage Determinations to respond to the SIR and we wouldn’t see another one until five years from now.  Is that an accurate statement?

RESPONSE #1 – No.  It is a requirement to incorporate Wage Determinations into the contract on an annual basis.

SECTION L - INSTRUCTIONS, CONDITIONS AND NOTICES TO OFFERORS

Section L.10.2 -- PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE

QUESTION #1 - Do you expect a "major" revision to the SIR by having the Pre-Proposal Conference during the week of August 9th?  Revisions/changes in requirements could impact the Contractor's ability to meet the Closing Date of September 10, 1999.

ANSWER #1 - We do not anticipate major revisions to the SIR requirements and, therefore, do not anticipate a need to change the closing date of September 10, 1999.

Section L.13 -- MINIMUM QUALIFICATION REQUIREMENTS
QUESTION #1 - Is item #3 (i.e. the ability to cover payroll and other operating and administrative expenses for work performed for periods up to ninety days…) contrary to the requirements of Contract Clause 3.3.1-17 "Prompt Payment (August 1998).

ANSWER #1 - No.  The Prompt Payment provision states that, if the Government does not pay a proper invoice within the due date, interest penalty shall be paid automatically by the Government.  Item #3 is requiring that all potential Offerors demonstrate the ability to cover payroll and other operating expenses for a period of ninety days. 

Section L.15 -- SPECIFIC SIR INSTRUCTIONS

QUESTION #1 – The organization of Volumes appears to conflict with L.18.1.3.  Page L-9 states that Volume II - Technical Proposal, Part I – Written Submission, Section C requires that an Oral Presentation Briefing Package must be submitted.  L.18.1.3 indicates only the packaged of charts, names of presenters, etc. is to be included in the submission.     Part II of Volume II – Oral Presentation – Briefing identified four areas that are to be addressed in the Oral Presentation.  This appears to require a detailed submission of those four items in the Oral Presentation Briefing Package.     Please clarify exactly what is expected to be included in the September 10th submission?

RESPONSE #1 – Under Volume II, Part I , Section C, the Oral Presentation Briefing Package shall include copies of briefing charts which should encompass the four items listed under Part II (which will be technical methodology and approach, relevant experience, personnel and financial resources and recruitment management, and transition management) and shall also include the list of presenters depicting name, company, position and the subject each will be responsible for.

QUESTION #2 – Section L.15.2/L.16.1.3 – You have requested that SIR Section B (Supplies or Services and Price/Cost) be included in Volume I, Section C.  Do you want this data in Volume I, or should it be in Volume IV, or both?

RESPONSE #2 - SIR Section B (Supplies or Services and Prices/Costs) shall be included in Volume I.  The Price Proposal in Volume IV should contain detailed information supporting the prices identified in Section B.  The detailed information in Volume IV must support Section B.  The prices must be the same.

QUESTION #3 – L.15.2 and L.19, Volume III – Order of Presentation.  There is a discrepancy between the order of presentation for Volume III in these two paragraphs.  Please provide the correct order of presentation.

RESPONSE #3 – Section L.19, Section A of Volume III will be revised to include the following order: 



Part 1 – Management Plan



Part 2 – Overall Structure



Part 3 – Contract Administration

QUESTION #4 – Paragraph L.15.3.3 specifies an exception to the required 12-point font for graphics, tables and diagrams as long as the information is easily readable.  Would this same exception apply to Staffing Charts and Schedules identified in L.18.1.1 thereby allowing them to be presented in spreadsheet format?  By permitting this exception, the Staffing Charts and Schedules can be presented in a one-page per site format enabling easier review by the FAA.  Charts prepared and presented in the required 12-point font and spacing would require additional pages, making the review process more cumbersome.

RESPONSE #4 – The Staff Charts and Schedules identified in L.18.1.1 cannot be presented in a smaller type size than the standard 12-point font.

QUESTION #5 – Paragraph L.15.3.3 stipulates that the maximum page limit for Volume III is 50 pages.  Are the resumes (2 pages each) excluded from the 50-page limit?  If they are not excluded, can they be in single-space format rather than 1-1/2 space format?

RESPONSE #5 – The Resumes are not excluded from the maximum page limit of 50 pages for Volume III.  The spacing shall remain in the 1-1/2 space format identified in L.15.3.3.1.

QUESTION #6 – Paragraph L.15.3.3.4 – There is a maximum 75-page limit for Volume II.  Will the briefing charts for the Oral Presentation count towards the 75 pages, or are they excluded?

RESPONSE #6 – Briefing Charts for the Oral Presentation count towards the 75 pages limit for Volume II.

Section L.16 -- VOLUME I, OFFER AND OTHER DOCUMENTS

QUESTION #1 – Section L.16.1.2 – Where do we obtain our Contractor Establishment Code (CEC)?  Does ASU have one for our company?

RESPONSE #1 – This Section will be revised to request a Dun and Bradstreet Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) Identification Number.  That number may be obtained from Dun and Bradstreet at 1-800-234-3867.  

Section L.17 -- ALTERNATE PROPOSALS

QUESTION #1 – We understand this clause, however, if our company can provide “extra value” benefits with little or no additional costs to the program, can we submit them without being penalized?

RESPONSE #1 – Alternate proposals are not acceptable and will be returned unopened.  

Section L.18 -- ORAL PRESENTATION – BRIEFING PACKAGE

QUESTION #1 – Will a Contractor be able to change the names of those people who will be giving the briefing, after the proposal closing date?

RESPONSE #1 – The FAA will allow the submission of additional names as alternates.  The Contractor shall not change the names of the presenters after submission of their technical proposal.

QUESTION #2 – Section L.18.1.1 provides up to five pages per site for Section 1-3 of the Staffing Plans.  Is there any additional data requested for the Staffing Plans other than the information listed in Sections 1, 2, and 3?  By specifying up to five pages, it appears there may be additional data required.

RESPONSE #2 – No.

Section L.19 -- VOLUME III – BUSINESS/MANAGEMENT PROPOSAL

QUESTION #1 – Section L.19.1.7, MULTIPLE BIDS – It is not clear whether or not we have to submit separate proposals for each contract.  Five (5) additional pages are allowed for each additional area.  Does this mean that we can submit one set of proposals, e.g., one Volume I, one Volume II, one Volume IV and then add on five pages to Volume III to cover the second area, organizationally?

RESPONSE #1 – When an Offeror is bidding on more than one area, he can submit one set of proposals (e.g., one Volume I, one Volume II, one Volume III and one Volume IV) and then add on five pages to cover the overall structure in Part II.  Each area in the Technical proposal cannot exceed 75 pages.  It is not necessary for the Offeror to repeat information previously submitted.

QUESTION #2 – Since FY99 will be over less than three weeks after this proposal is submitted, can the wording be amended to match L.19.2.4 to “the past three years” versus FY96/97/98”?

RESPONSE #2 – The wording identified in Section L.19.2.1 shall remain unchanged.

QUESTION #3 – In order to give the FAA a truer picture of a Contractor’s past work experience and a better picture of a Contractor’s performance, can we include “Task Orders” under an Indefinite Delivery/Indefinite Quantity (IDIQ) contract [such as the FAA’s Broad Information Technology Services (BITS) contract] or a GSA Schedule contract?

RESPONSE #3 – Yes.  The Offeror may identify Task Orders under IDIQ contracts and/or GSA Schedules as part of the supplemental list. 

Section L.20 -- VOLUME IV – PRICE PROPOSAL – PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS

QUESTION #1 – Does the requirement in paragraph L.20.3.3.2 entail a cost-breakdown of each expense category for each site, which we have provided FAA on the existing contract?  Will you accept our cost-breakdown for each site or do you have another requirement?  

a) Labor category, hours, rate, total cost of labor (matches labor hours in staffing Plans)

b) Health and Welfare (H&W) benefits, vacation leave, holiday pay, workers’ compensation, and employer taxes.

c) This Total (1&2) Constitutes Total Labor Costs.

d) Labor Overhead-Salaries for Area Managers and Manager of Drug/Alcohol Program and Manager of Quality Service Office.  This cost is a percentage of Direct Labor shared by each site equally or a pro-rata basis.

e) ODCs constitute costs incurred at each site, with some variances due to the number of people at each site.  These costs include travel, telephone service, supplies, and costs for annual physicals, drug and alcohol testing.  For sites that are subcontracted out, the total CLIN operations cost will be included as a single ODC line item.

f) G&A  These cost will change (decrease as the base increases).  Do we bid our current G&A, i.e., through June, 1999 or do you require “forward projections” for G&A for the Option Years, as the base is likely to increase?

RESPONSE #1a - Review Section J, Attachment 4, Table B in its entirety.

RESPONSE #1b - FAA does not consider the listed fringe benefit as direct labor. Therefore, we have established categories for fringe benefit, overhead and G&A rates as outlined in Section L.20.3.3.2.3 through L.20.3.3.2.4.

RESPONSE #1c - See Response to #1a.

RESPONSE #1d and 1e – The FAA requires a detailed breakdown of the methodology of each element of expense, as prescribed in Sections L.20.3.3.2 and L.20.3.3.2.7. 

RESPONSE # 1f - FAA cannot direct, estimate or project rates and/or costs for contractors.  This is a firm fixed price contract. 

QUESTION #2 – Paragraph L.20.3.3.2.2 – The Service Contract Act (SCA) includes provisions for annual adjustments.  Generally, this negates the requirement to escalate SCA categories in the proposal.  Please clarify.

RESPONSE #2 – As previously discussed Clause H.33 will be deleted.  FAA will not make wage determination adjustments.  We will provide historical data of DOL wage determination rates for the sites.  The Offeror has the option of using this data and any other data it deems appropriate to estimate costs.

QUESTION #3 – Section L.20.3.3.2.6 – This paragraph requires the prime to “Provide an explanation and supporting data for deriving these factors and how the factors are used to reconcile for differences between the Prime and Subcontractor rates and accounting methods/systems.  The prime contractor will not have access to the subcontractor rates and accounting methods/systems necessary to fully respond to this requirement.  Will the FAA perform the assist audits to determine this information?

RESPONSE #3 - The pricing instructions are also applicable to the subcontractor.  When the subcontractor considers its pricing data proprietary, it shall provide the data under a separate sealed cover and clearly marked “PROPRIETARY DATA - FOR FAA EYES AND REVIEW ONLY”    

QUESTION #4 – In paragraph L.20.3.3.2.7, the date appears to be incorrect.  Phase-in period begins at contract award until January 13, “1999” should be “2000”.

RESPONSE #4 – Correct.  The year should be 2000.  In addition, Section L.20.3.3.2.7 will be revised to state that the Phase-in period shall begin on the date of contract award through February 12, 2000.

QUESTION #5 – The schedule in this paragraph may provide risk to the FAA and for either incumbent contractors or new contractors winning new areas, to accomplish everything that is required in the first two weeks after contract award (i.e., determine which incumbent contract employees wish to stay at their present location and work for the new contractor, then hire a sufficient number of new employees to fill vacancies and have them on board by December 13th in order to complete training).  All of this must be accomplished in two weeks.  Can an additional 15 or 30 days be added to the timeline, in order to increase the chances for a smooth transition of services?

RESPONSE #5 – The contracts are scheduled to be awarded on November 30, 1999.  This starts the transition period.  The Contractors will report to the sites on January 13, 2000.  The Contractors shall become responsible for tower operations no later than February 13, 2000.

Section L.21 -- FINANCIAL STATEMENT

QUESTION #1 – This paragraph states “in the event of a team/joint venture or other group of companies is proposed to accomplish the functions of a prime contractor, separate financial statements for each company participating in the team/joint venture or group shall be provided.  Does this requirement pertain to subcontractor?

RESPONSE #1 – Yes.  See paragraph 1 of Section L.21.

Section L.23 -- SITE VISITS

QUESTION #1 – Please provide the names and phone numbers for the points of contact for each incumbent contractor to facilitate the site visits.

RESPONSE #1 – The names and telephone numbers of the incumbent Contractors will be provided.

QUESTION #2 – Can the Offerors call the sites directly for non-proprietary information pertaining to traffic count, traffic flow, county, taxing jurisdiction, etc.? 

RESPONSE #2 – The Offeror shall contact the Airport Manager.

SECTION M – EVALUATION FACTORS FOR AWARD

Section M.1 -- BASIS FOR AWARD
QUESTION #1 – Define, as it is being applied to this SIR, best value.

RESPONSE #1 – The most advantageous offer, price and other factors considered, providing the best mix of resources, technical quality, business aspect, risk and price.  Therefore, the successful Offerors may not have submitted the lowest price proposal.
Section M.4 -- RISK ANALYSIS

QUESTION #1 – How are you going to measure risk?

RESPONSE #1 – We are assessing the overall risk of your proposal, including price, technical and business/management.

OTHER QUESTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
QUESTION #1 – Not identified in the SIR – For development of the staffing plans, will the FAA accept the “opening” watch to start 15 minutes prior to the tower opening time?  Fifteen minutes of controller time is required to prepare the tower for opening.  Duties, such as checking radio frequencies/standby availability, loading/setting up the tape recorder, taking weather observations, turning on airfield and approach landing lights and surveying the airfield for surface traffic, construction areas, etc. 

REPSONSE #1 – Yes.  The FAA will accept starting 15 minutes prior to the opening time for that controller assigned to open the tower.

QUESTION #2 – Since FCT locations list weather observation requirements during hours when the FCT is closed, can A.S.O.S. be used to accomplish this requirement or must manual observations be taken during these hours? 

REPSONSE #2 – Weather reporting observation requirements will not encompass time outside of tower operations.  Appendix 3 will be modified to indicate this.

QUESTION #3 - A significant number of FCT locations identify hours of FCT weather reporting services that are periods either before the tower opens or after it closes.  Is the Offeror expected to provide weather reporting services 24 hours per day in addition to those when the control tower is open?

RESPONSE #3 – No.

QUESTION #4 - Attachment 2, Question 10b.  “The offers price is expected to reflect the estimated cost he expects to incur to satisfy the requirements of the SOW” – some of the requirements are open-ended.  How will the FAA address costs that are not able to be determined in a fair way to either the FAA or the Contractor prior to them occurring and not having the FAA pay for something it never receives or the Contractor not including something in their pricing that they had no way of forecasting would happen?  I.e., The number of post accident drug tests in a given year, the number of pilot meetings or administrative meetings at Hub facilities, accident investigations, etc.

RESPONSE #4 – The Offeror’s price is expected to reflect the estimated costs to satisfy the requirements of the Statement of Work (SOW).  Prices will be evaluated on reasonableness and realism.

QUESTION #5 - It appears that the FAA could save money by using a “Time and Materials” contract and only pay for services actually provided.  Has there been any consideration of changing the contract to a T&M contract versus fixed price?

RESPONSE #5 – No consideration has been made to changing the contract type.

QUESTION #6 – Will the FAA provide a “general criteria” it will use in determining an Offeror’s risk (i.e., transition to new contractor, financial capability, management capability, contingency planning, staffing adequacy, etc.) and to what extent or magnitude does each criteria pose a risk to the Government?

RESPONSE #6 – Risk assessment analysis serves to assess and evaluate potential risks to the Government associated with the selection of each Offeror’s overall proposal for fulfilling the requirements of the SIR.  Risks discovered within each Offeror’s proposal will be thoroughly assessed as to the potential impact on the contract and further evaluated as to their magnitude and probability of occurrence.

QUESTION #7 – Will the FAA require that the incumbent Contractor pay out all leave balances or will the successor Contractor be required to assume the responsibility?  Will the FAA reimburse the successor Contractor for the assumed balances?

RESPONSE #7 – The successor Contractor has not assumed responsibility for leave balances.  FAA has paid out these balances through monthly invoicing and billings received.

QUESTION #8 – The following schedule demonstrates our understanding of the transition period:

1. All current contracts are extended to January 13, 2000.

2. The Phase-Out CLIN for all current contractors will be exercised to cover the period January 14 to February 14, 2000 in order to provide ATC coverage during the transition.

3. The Section B tables will be revised to require 7.5 months of full ATC services.

4. The Phase-In CLIN will cover all activities beginning at contract award and continuing to the transfer of full operational responsibility on February 15, 2000.

Is our understanding correct?

RESPONSE #8 – Our response is, as follows:

1. All current contracts are extended to January 13, 2000.

2. The January 13, 2000 date will only apply in situations where the incumbent contractor wins his area and a transition period if not necessary.  If the incumbent does not win his area, the current contract will be extended one month to cover the cost of ATC services from January 13 – February 13, 2000.  The Phase-Out CLIN is used to cover the costs, if any, associated with the termination of services at the site.  The Phase-Out CLIN will not be used to cover operational costs.

3. The Section B base year will be amended to reflect 8.5 months of ATC services.

4. The Phase-In CLIN will cover Phase-In costs only.  No operational costs will be included in Phase-In costs.

RECOMMENDATION #1 – Recommendation not identified in the SIR – We strongly believe in face-to-face meetings between the FAA and its selected FCT Program Contractors on an annual basis.  FAA, over the past five years, has hosted annual meetings.  All of them have been extremely beneficial to the “managerial partnership” to sustain and improve the overall performance of the program.  AAAE-sponsored workshops are also scheduled as annual events, and they have proven to be very beneficial to the program, as it brings the users, FAA and the Contractors to a forum, which focuses primarily on user (airport) objectives with some agenda items directed to the FAA-Contractor “partnership”.

We are recommending that each CONUS Area Contractor sponsor an annual meeting (four meetings over four years) and that FAA Contracts/Program Office sponsor one.  This will be a total of five annual meetings (four contractor meetings and one FAA meeting).  Further, we believe that the contract should reimburse the contractor under a separate CLIN-Management meeting” at the following rate:


Sponsor Contractor (one each year)

$10,000/year


For Non-Sponsor Participating Contractors
  $5,000/year

This would total $25,000/year for four contract years and $20,000/year for the year FAA hosts the conference.  Grand total for the five-year contract would be $120,000.  This amount of money, in relationship to the contract cost, would be miniscule and the benefits of enhanced program communications and resolution of Government-Contractor management problems would far outweigh the cost.

RESPONSE #1 – The FAA intends to bear the expenses of the annual conferences, but does not intend to establish CLINs for the Contractor to host the conference.
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